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DATE: February 24, 2014 
 
Joliet Junior College 
1215 Houbolt Road 
Joliet, IL 60431 
 
TO:    Prospective Bidders 

SUBJECT:  Addendum No. 1 

PROJECT NAME: Professional Services - Renaissance Center Banquet Operation 

Comprehensive Business Plan 

JJC PROJECT NO.: R14001 

 
Acknowledge receipt of this addendum as instructed on the final page. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY 
SUBJECT BIDDER TO DISQUALIFICATION.

 

Additional bidding requirements: 

1. The revised due date for all proposals is: Friday, February 28, 2014 at 2:00pm 
 

2. All proposals must be submitted to the address below clearly marked Professional 
Services - Renaissance Center Banquet Operation Comprehensive Business Plan.  
Emailed and faxed proposals cannot be accepted. 
 
Janice Reedus 
Director of Business & Auxiliary Services 
Joliet Junior College  
1215 Houbolt Road 
Joliet, IL 60431 

 

3. Blackout Period: After the College has advertised for proposals, no pre-proposal consultant 
shall contact any College officer(s) or employee(s) involved in the solicitation process, 
except for interpretation of specifications, clarification of bid submission requirements or 
any information pertaining to probed conferences. Such consultants making such request 
shall email Janice Reedus, Director of Business & Auxiliary Services, at purchasing@jjc.edu. 
No consultant shall visit or contact any College officers or an employee until after the 
proposal is awarded, except in those instances when site inspection is a prerequisite for the 
submission of a proposal. During the black-out period, any such visitation, solicitation or 
sales call by any representative of a prospective consultant in violation of this provision 
may cause the disqualification of such bidder’s response. 

mailto:purchasing@jjc.edu
http://www.jjc.edu/pages/default.aspx
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Questions submitted by bidders: 

1. Page 1: Could we have a breakdown of the 17,706 students by location? 
The majority of our students attend classes at the Main Campus.  

2. Page 2: The content of the business plan includes a statement: “Integration of Culinary Arts 
and Hospitality Program within the banquet operation”   If the renovated Renaissance 
Center is to handle large events and the Culinary Arts and Hospitality Program is to move to 
the new City Center, how will this “integration into the banquet operation work? 
We are seeking the expertise of a food services consultant to assist us with developing a 

plan to accomplish this objective. 

One option that has been discussed is to utilize the meeting/dining Rooms as labs for 

students enrolled in the Hospitality Program. 

3. When the Renaissance Center is reopened, will it only operate with outside caterers?  Or 
will JJC foodservice staff continue to produce special events? 
The current direction is to operate with outside caterers.  We are open to 

recommendations/suggestions regarding other revenue-producing opportunities. 

4. Could we have more of a description of what will be in the City Center?  Will it include other 
retail venues?  Other foodservice venues besides the restaurant? 
The 10-story structure will house the college's culinary arts and hospitality programs 

as well as workforce development, GED/ESL training, and adult education programs. 

Please see the link below to the JJC website for more information. 

City Center Campus 

There are no plans for any retail venues other than JJC’s Culinary Arts restaurant. This 

restaurant is slated to be open one day/week. 

5. How large are the banquet spaces in the Renaissance Center now, and how will they change 
after the renovation? 
See Attachment A   for room capacity, fee, and square footage data. 

6. How many seats are projected for the restaurant in the City Center? 
This information will be provided to the selected consultant. 

              Financial History & Budgets 

a) Actual departmental budget or financial statements or P&L statements (with line item 
detail) for the last two (2) fiscal operating years.  
See Attachment B 

 

b) Current Fiscal Year line item operating budget and y-t-d actual of revenue and 
expenses.   
See attachment C 

http://www.jjc.edu/ABOUT/COLLEGE-INFO/MASTER-PLAN/Pages/citycentercampus.aspx


Addendum No. 1 
Page 3 

c) If available, a chronological list of all events and attendance per event for the last 2 
years 
See Attachment D (Renaissance Center Events 2012-2013) 

d) A list of future tentative or confirmed events with estimated attendance 
See Attachment E (Summary of Upcoming Events) 

e) We’d like copies of the settlement invoices from a sample of event types to see what 
services were provided, charges etc. Can you please provide 1 or 2 settlements per the 
following event types? 

1) Conference or Meetings 
2) Trade/public shows (includes any gated events)   
          N/A 
3) Weddings 
4) Non-profit events  
5) from three (3) largest Banquets or Catered events 

                       
                See attachment F (five (5) invoices) 
 

7. Food and Beverage – Catering 
 
a) If available, can you please provide Per Capita information by event type for the last two 

years 
- $XX.XX per person for breakfast, lunch or dinner  
- XX.XX per person for beverage sales 
This information will be provided to the selected consultant. 

 

b) Sample Catering Contract/License 

    See Attachment G  

d) Any current sponsorship deals/ categories that would affect food service 

      None. 

e) Please provide a recent catering menu for reception/dinner, with pricing  

     Please see info on JJC website: 

    http://www.jjc.edu/about/community-interests/renaissance-center/Pages/default.aspx 

 
8. Current Operations & Employees 

 
We’d like to develop a better understanding of the current labor profile, which positions are 
faculty/staff plus all non-faculty full and part-time positions used to presently operate the 
facility. Can you please provide?  
The Renaissance Center staff report into the Auxiliary Services department. The 
Executive Chef and Sous Chef for the center are also Auxiliary Services personnel and 
are not considered faculty.  The Culinary Arts Department assigns their own faculty 
members to teach the Culinary Arts courses. 
 
 

http://www.jjc.edu/about/community-interests/renaissance-center/Pages/default.aspx
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a.   Current Organizational Chart for all full and part-time positions of any ON SITE 

personnel, including faculty and student (leader) positions 

        Renaissance Center staffing: 

   Two Full-Time Staff: 

1) Executive Chef 
2)  Supervisor 

           

            Part- time Staff 

1) Sous Chef   (Union) 
2) Six (6) Cooks 
3) Five (5) Utility Workers 
4) 27 Banquet Staff 
5) Six(6) Housemen 
6) Two (2) Restaurant Staff 
7) Admin Assistant 
8) Bookkeeper  (Union) 
 

          Effective, July 1, 2014 – staffing will consist of:  

 One (1) full-time supervisor 

One part-time sous chef  

Front of house and back of house part-time staff as needed for the seven (7) large social   

events (scheduled through the end of calendar year 2014). 

Back of house staff will also be required to support Culinary Arts classes and two 

weekly events –weekly a la carte and Friday Night Out dinner. 

b. List of all current full time positions and salaries by position 
    See response to 8a.) above.  Salary information will be provided to the selected 

consultant. 
 
c. Designation of which full-time employees are union (if any) and to which union they 

belong, in addition to copies of any collective bargaining agreements. 
       The two full-time employees are not part of a union.  
 
d. Copy (if available) of the employee benefit programs (summary plan description only) 
    This information will be supplied to the selected consultant if necessary. 
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e.    An explanation (if any) of service/task responsibilities of JCC staff or departments 

performing services for the facility (i.e. exterior landscaping, trash or snow removal 

etc.) 

 Please account how costs for these JCC services are budgeted/paid for within the 
Operation budget 

       Our Facilities Services staff   provides custodial services for the Renaissance Center. 
JJC’s Campus Police   perform security duties.  Associated expenses are included in 
each of the respective department’s operating budget. 

 
9. Third Party Services 

 
a) Parking – we’d appreciate an explanation of how parking works, fees (if any) 

charged/who collects, cleans etc. If outsourced, we’d appreciate a copy of the 
agreement 

       Renaissance Center guests secure their own parking either across the street from 
the Center, metered/open street parking, or host-provided valet parking. 

 
b) Copy of any security, IATSE or other third party agreements 

                     N/A 
 

10. F, F & E Inventory 
a) If available, is there a current list of all in-house F&B equipment and tools /inventory? 
       This information will be supplied to the selected consultant.  
 
b) An explanation or list of any equipment rented for events or seasonal use 

No equipment is rented for events or seasonal use.  Linens are rented on a weekly 
basis. 
 

c) If available, most recent Capital Expenditures and Repair Request/Plan or Budget 
             This information will be supplied to the selected consultant.  

12. General Sales & Marketing / Sponsorship Agreements 

a. Is there a written booking policy for renting the Renaissance center? 
    Yes. 
 
b. Who is in charge of sales?  

The Renaissance Center supervisor is in charge of sales as well as the front of the 
house    operation. The Supervisor reports to the Director of Business The 
Administrative Assistant reports to the supervisor. 
 

c.  Are there any recent/relative reports prepared by JCC that discuss marketing efforts, 
collaborations or economic impact? 

 This information will be supplied to the selected consultant.  
 

d. Are there any JCC ‘master’ agreements in place for the sale of sponsorships or advertising 
at either the facility or other campus locations?  
No.  We have not offered sponsorships in the past. 
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Please acknowledge receipt of this addendum by fax at the number listed below or by 
emailing back a signed copy of this page to: purchasing@jjc.edu  Include your name, title, 
and company name in your acknowledgement email.  Failure to do so could result in 
disqualification of your bid. 
 

Issued by: 
 

Janice Reedus 
Director of Business & Auxiliary Services 
Joliet Junior College 
 

Phone:  815.280.6678 
Fax:  815.280.6631 
 

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum 1 
 
 

     
Signature 
 
 
     
Company Name 
 

mailto:purchasing@jjc.edu
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